
Board of Finance 
Regular Meetings 

 
January 22, 2013 

(Tuesday) 

 
February 19, 2013 

(Tuesday) 

 
March 18, 2013 

 
April 15, 2013 

 
May 20, 2013 

7:30 

 
June 17, 2013 

7:30 

 
July 15, 2013 

7:30 

 
August 19, 2013 

7:30 

 
September 16, 2013 

 
October 21, 2013 

 
November 18, 2013 

 
December 16, 2013 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
* ‐ Potential action item 

 
 
 

 
TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON 
EAST HAMPTON, CT 06424 

 
BOARD OF FINANCE 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 21, 2013 

7:30 PM 
Location: Town Hall Meeting Room 

1. Call to Order 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

3. Approval of Minutes of Meeting(s) * 

a) September 16, 2013 – Regular meeting 

4. Public Remarks 

5. Financial Transactions 

a) Additional appropriation for Historical Society ‐ $60,000 (FY 2014) * 

6. Correspondence  

7. Special presentations 

8. Status Reports (Financial) 

a) 2013‐2014 Revenues 

b) 2013‐2014 Expenditures 

9. Continued Business 

a) High School Renovation project update 

b) Capital Policy 

c) Fines/Penalties 

10. New Business 

11. Liaison's Reports 

a) Town Council 

b) Board of Education 

c) WPCA 

d) Economic Development Commission 

e) Lake / Conservation 

f) Fire Commissioners 

g) Brownfields/Redevelopment 

h) Park & Rec. Advisory Board 

12.  Public Remarks 

13. Town Manager's Report 

14. Adjournment 



Town of East Hampton 
Board of Finance  
Regular Meeting 

Monday, September 16, 2013 
Town Hall Meeting Room  

 
   Unapproved Minutes 

 
Present: Timothy Csere, Mary Ann Dostaler, Tom O’Brien, David Monighetti, Patience Anderson and 
Ted Turner (Mr. Turner arrived during the discussion of item# 8b). 
 
Absent:  Matthew Walton 
 
Other attendee(s):  Jeffery M. Jylkka, Director of Finance   
 
1-2. Vice-Chairman Timothy Csere called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. followed by 

the Pledge of Allegiance. 
        
  
3. Approval of Minutes of Meeting(s): 
 a) Aug. 19, 2013 – Regular meeting 
        Chairman Walton requested the following change via email: #9-D: Change September 1st to 

around the first week of September.  Mary Ann Dostaler suggested adding “the elimination of 
auxillary lighting” to item# 6a (Special Presentations) in the 3rd sentence.  The sentence should 
read: ”Ruth explained that the estimate is lower than others due to the elimination of auxillary 
lighting and based on the fact that there is sufficient ampage and voltage that currently exists 
and that the conduit is in the ground therefore; it would be a matter of running the wires 
through the existing conduit, setting the concrete and putting up the lights”. 

        Vice-Chairman Csere motioned to approve the minutes with the suggested changes, seconded 
by Tom O’Brien.  Vote: 4-Yes; 0-No; 2-Absent (Ted Turner and Chairman Walton); 1-
Abstain (David Monighetti).  Motion passed.       

         
  

4.   Public Remarks: None 
 
5.  Correspondence: None 
 
6.   Special presentations:  None 
 
7.   Status Reports (Financial): 
 a) 2012-2013 Revenues – Jeff Jylkka provided an overview of the 2012-2013 Revenues. 
 b) 2012-2013 Expenditures – Jeff Jylkka provided an overview of the 2012-2013 Expenditures. 
        c) 2012-2013 Fund Balance – Jeff Jylkka provided an overview of the 2012-2013 Fund Balance. 
 
8.   Financial Transactions:   
        a) End of fiscal year transfers (FY 2013) – Jeff Jylkka provided the members of the board with 

an itemized explanation of the transfers for FY 2013.  A brief discussion followed.  Mary Ann 
Dostaler motioned to accept the end of fiscal year transfers for FY 2013 as presented, seconded 
by Patience Anderson.  Vote: Yes-6; No-0; Absent-1  Motion passed. 

 
       b) Board of Education special education excess cost additional appropriation (FY 2013) -  Jeff 

Jylkka provided the members of the board with an itemized explanation of the Board of 
Education special education excess costs for FY 2013.  A brief discussion followed.  Tom O’Brien 



motioned to approve the Board of Education special education excess cost additional 
appropriation (FY 2013) by reading aloud the proposed resolution: “ Resolved, that the Board of 
Finance recommends to the Town Council, the above additional appropriation from state grant 
revenue in the amount of $475,055”, seconded by Patience Anderson.  Vote:  Yes-6; No-0; 
Absent-1  Motion passed. 

 
9.   Continued Business: 
 a) High School Renovation project update – Jeff Jylkka stated that they are putting out an RFP 

for a Commissioning agent and that SLAM’s contract is in the process of being modified. 
        b) Capital Policy – Jeff Jylkka provided the members with a draft of the Capital Policy which was 

reviewed and discussed. The board members agreed to have a special workshop specific to the 
Capital Policy.  Jeff Jylkka stated that when the Capital Policy is complete it will be sent to the 
Board of Education for feedback. 

       c) Fines / Penalties – Jeff Jylkka stated that they are in the process of doing a study of local of 
fines and penalties and trying to find a resolution that addresses it through ordinances and 
state statutes. 

       d) Administrators’ Collective Bargaining – Mary Ann Dostaler stated that the bargaining was 
approved. 

 
10.  New Business:  Vice-Chairman Csere passed out an article regarding the embezzling of money 

from Shelton city funds by the city’s former assistant finance director.  The article will be filed 
with the minutes.         

 
11.   Liasion’s Report: 
        a) Town Council – Ted Turner provided highlights of the meeting: they hired an organization to 

check the staffing levels (TIJ Consulting) in the amount of $17000.00, they passed the tax 
deferral, they voted on a grant for Brewer and Christopher roads, they discussed the 
agricultural workshop and passed the contribution plans.  Mr. Turner stated that the following 
topics were discussed as well: 13 Summit St, the funding of the ambulance conversion to an 
emergency mobile unit, updates on the athletic lighting were discussed and the 3rd meeting of 
the police SOB is coming up on Sept 25th. 

 b) Board of Education – Mary Ann Dostaler attended the last meeting and provided highlights: 
she stated that there was an executive session before the meeting where they discussed the 
approval of the administrators’ contract in the amount of $94,541.00.  Ms. Dostaler provided a 
brief summary of the cost impact statement.  The new certified staff and nurses were 
introduced at the BOE meeting, the Friends of Education Award was given and the highlights of 
the BOE retreat were discussed. 

 c) WPCA – Ted Turner attended the meeting and reported that the WPCA had a public hearing 
which was not attended by the public.  Testing was done in the Village center and the results 
were good.  WPCA discussed the new Hope Church and that in order to provide sewer hook-up 
for the church, they will need money. 

       d) Economic Development Commission – David Monighetti was unable to attend but Mary Ann 
Dostaler stated that at the Town Council meeting, there was a discussion about tax abatement.  

 e) Lake/Conservation – Patience Anderson did not attend the last meeting. 
 f) Fire Commissioners – Chairman Walton was not present this evening to report. 
 g) Brownfields/Redevelopment –Mary Ann Dostaler stated that she did not attend the last 

meeting. 
 h)Park & Rec. Advisory Board – Timothy Csere stated that he was unable to attend the meeting 

last month.   
 
12.  Public Remarks: None. 
 
13.  Town Manager’s Report: The Town Manager was not present to report. 



 
14.   Adjournment:  Patience Anderson made a motion to adjourn at 8:36 p.m., seconded by Ted 

Turner.  Motion: 6-Yes; 1-Absent. 
  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
Christine Castonguay 
Recording Secretary 



Board of Finance Agenda Item #5a  

1 | P a g e  
 

Town of East Hampton 
Additional Appropriation / Transfer Request Form 
Fiscal Year 2013‐2014 
 

 
Fund:  General Fund 
Department: Transfers Out (Capital Reserve Fund)  
 
Additional Appropriation        
Transfer       

 
 

The following additional appropriation / transfer is recommended for board approval. 
 
Estimated Revenue 

01060135  4590  Unassigned Fund Balance (Use of Fund Balance)   $ 60,000 

                TOTAL         
 
Appropriation  

01810000  5924  Capital reserve  $  60,000 

 
 
 
Explanation 
The above additional appropriation  is being requested to finance the  installation of a water main extension and sewer connection 
for the Chatham Historical Society located on Bevin Boulevard. See attached for additional information. 
 
Source of Funds 
Funding is from unassigned fund balance. 
 
 
Proposed Resolution 

RESOLVED,  that  the  Board  of  Finance  recommends  that  the  Town  of  East  Hampton  appropriate  $60,000  from 
unassigned General Fund balance and transfer the same amount to the Capital Reserve Fund for costs associated with 
the  installation of a water main extension and connection of a sanitary sewer system to serve the Chatham Historical 
Society located on Bevin Boulevard. The appropriation may be spent for design, construction, acquisition and installation 
costs, related work and improvements, equipment, furnishings, materials, architect, engineering, project management, 
construction management and other consultant fees, legal fees, administrative costs, and other expenses related to the 
project. 
 
 
Approved    Yes  No    Date 
Board of Finance                      
Town Council         

















10/17/2013 12:58 |TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON |PG  1
jjylkka   |YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT |glytdbud

FOR 2014 13

ORIGINAL ESTIM REV REVISED ACTUAL YTD REMAINING PCT
ESTIM REV ADJSTMTS EST REV REVENUE REVENUE COLL

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

01 GENERAL FUND   
_________________________________________

40 Property taxes  -30,223,054  0 -30,223,054 -16,135,415.70  -14,087,638.30  53.4%
41 Investment income    -32,000  0  -32,000    -261.77    -31,738.23  .8%
42 License,permit& FEES    -382,980  0  -382,980  -146,956.40    -236,023.60  38.4%
44 STATE & LOCAL GRANTS   -8,492,254  0  -8,492,254  -344,746.58   -8,147,507.42  4.1%
45 Local gov.payments    -11,800  0  -11,800    -11.88    -11,788.12  .1%
46 Charges for services    -16,000  0  -16,000    -8,867.85    -7,132.15  55.4%
47 Other revenue    -79,887  0  -79,887   -24,532.51    -55,354.49  30.7%

TOTAL GENERAL FUND  -39,237,975  0 -39,237,975 -16,660,792.69  -22,577,182.31  42.5%

GRAND TOTAL  -39,237,975  0 -39,237,975 -16,660,792.69  -22,577,182.31  42.5%

 ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Jeff Jylkka ** 

Agenda item: 8a



10/17/2013 13:47 |TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON |PG  1
jjylkka   |YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT |glytdbud

FOR 2014 13

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET YTD EXPENDED ENC/REQ BUDGET USED

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

01 GENERAL FUND   
_________________________________________

01010000 Town Manager's Department  319,684  0  319,684  78,322.63  17,150.00  224,211.37  29.9%
01020000 Town Council/Special Progr  24,957  0  24,957  12,636.70  .00  12,320.30  50.6%
01030000 Facilities Administrator  96,963  0  96,963  314.02  .00  96,648.98  .3%
01040000 LEGAL FEES  150,000  0  150,000  27,029.84  .00  122,970.16  18.0%
01050000 Town Hall/Annex  266,717  0  266,717  64,813.40  44,499.92  157,403.68  41.0%
01060135 Finance and Accounting  416,805  0  416,805  133,047.10  6,609.34  277,148.56  33.5%
01060136 Collector of Revenue  161,690  0  161,690  48,880.57  1,464.00  111,345.43  31.1%
01060137 Assessor  177,801  0  177,801  47,874.04  4,329.60  125,597.36  29.4%
01060138 Board of Assessment Appeal  1,282  0  1,282  65.00  .00  1,217.00  5.1%
01070000 Town Clerk  175,663  0  175,663  47,128.09  19,991.86  108,543.05  38.2%
01080000 Registrars/Elections  44,633  0  44,633  6,339.80  .00  38,293.20  14.2%
01090000 General Insurance  282,300  0  282,300  212,503.00  .00  69,797.00  75.3%
01100000 Probate Court  13,957  0  13,957  6,978.50  .00  6,978.50  50.0%
01110000 Employee Benefits  1,467,820  0  1,467,820  293,767.57  .00  1,174,052.43  20.0%
01120000 Contingency  65,000  0  65,000  .00  .00  65,000.00  .0%
01150000 Information Technology  72,402  0  72,402  29,104.80  .00  43,297.20  40.2%
01210211 Police Administration  285,521  0  285,521  69,248.91  14,108.96  202,163.13  29.2%
01210212 Regular Patrol  1,343,333  0  1,343,333  303,033.84  3,430.83  1,036,868.33  22.8%
01210213 Lake Patrol  3,706  0  3,706  2,344.16  47.29  1,314.55  64.5%
01210214 Animal Control  39,556  0  39,556  15,474.77  .00  24,081.23  39.1%
01220221 Firefighting  277,818  0  277,818  43,637.71  1,476.64  232,703.65  16.2%
01220223 Fire Marshall  46,455  0  46,455  12,258.72  .00  34,196.28  26.4%
01220225 Town Center Fire System  14,150  0  14,150  869.47  .00  13,280.53  6.1%
01230000 Ambulance  6,910  0  6,910  1,119.13  .00  5,790.87  16.2%
01240000 Civil Preparedness  16,200  0  16,200  1,062.83  .00  15,137.17  6.6%
01250000 Communications  121,158  0  121,158  29,750.33  90,219.25  1,188.42  99.0%
01260000 Street Lighting  59,000  0  59,000  13,238.27  .00  45,761.73  22.4%
01310000 Health Department  110,407  0  110,407  55,203.50  55,203.50  .00  100.0%
01320000 Human Services  110,993  0  110,993  25,390.79  360.00  85,242.21  23.2%
01330000 Senior Center  108,244  0  108,244  24,231.57  4,730.32  79,282.11  26.8%
01340000 Transportation  54,100  0  54,100  26,300.00  26,300.00  1,500.00  97.2%
01350000 Community Services  4,500  0  4,500  4,650.00  .00  -150.00  103.3%
01360000 CEMETERY CARE  5,000  0  5,000  4,315.51  .00  684.49  86.3%
01410000 Building, Planning & Zonin  332,218  0  332,218  92,020.88  .00  240,197.12  27.7%
01420000 Econ. Development Commissi  10,827  0  10,827  1,213.54  .00  9,613.46  11.2%
01430000 Conservation & Lake Commis  20,682  0  20,682  699.02  .00  19,982.98  3.4%
01460000 Redevelopment Agency  3,167  0  3,167  199.53  .00  2,967.47  6.3%
01470000 Middle Haddam Historic Dis  1,770  0  1,770  210.55  .00  1,559.45  11.9%
01510000 Public Works Admin.  1,265,670  0  1,265,670  238,793.95  6,468.19  1,020,407.86  19.4%
01520000 Engineering  60,000  0  60,000  4,809.33  .00  55,190.67  8.0%

Agenda item: 8b



 
 
 

10/17/2013 13:47    |TOWN OF EAST HAMPTON |PG     2
jjylkka             |YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REPORT |glytdbud

 
 

FOR 2014 13
 

ORIGINAL TRANFRS/ REVISED AVAILABLE PCT
                                            APPROP ADJSTMTS BUDGET YTD EXPENDED ENC/REQ BUDGET USED
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

 
01530000 Town Garage       59,731           0      59,731       9,866.28       4,320.00      45,544.72   23.8%
01540000 Townwide Motor Fuel      187,880           0     187,880      18,419.85     145,000.00      24,460.15   87.0%
01550000 Road Materials      325,500           0     325,500      29,105.92         867.03     295,527.05    9.2%
01560000 Transfer Station      134,823           0     134,823      29,158.93            .00     105,664.07   21.6%
01570000 Septage Disposal        2,400           0       2,400       2,232.00            .00         168.00   93.0%
01610610 Park & Recreation      371,516           0     371,516     110,139.49       7,010.32     254,366.19   31.5%
01660000 Arts & Cultural Commission        2,350           0       2,350          88.00            .00       2,262.00    3.7%
01670000 Community Center      158,637           0     158,637      35,009.79       1,814.69     121,812.52   23.2%
01680681 E Hampton Public Library      433,023           0     433,023     108,744.85       3,167.00     321,111.15   25.8%
01680682 Middle Haddam Library       20,000           0      20,000      20,000.00            .00            .00  100.0%
01710711 General Obligation Bonds-P      510,000           0     510,000     285,000.00            .00     225,000.00   55.9%
01710712 School Bonds-Prin      325,000           0     325,000     325,000.00            .00            .00  100.0%
01720721 General Obligation Bonds-I      223,657           0     223,657      85,984.39            .00     137,672.61   38.4%
01720722 School Bonds-Int       43,620           0      43,620      13,060.00            .00      30,560.00   29.9%
01810000 Operating Transfers Out      869,916           0     869,916            .00            .00     869,916.00     .0%

 
TOTAL GENERAL FUND                    11,707,112           0  11,707,112   3,050,690.87     458,568.74   8,197,852.39   30.0%

 
 

GRAND TOTAL   11,707,112           0  11,707,112   3,050,690.87     458,568.74   8,197,852.39   30.0%
 

                                           ** END OF REPORT - Generated by Jeff Jylkka **                                           
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



1 | P a g e  
9/18/2013 2:07:43 PM 
10/17/2013 11:14:21 AM 

 

Purpose 

In  recognition  that  buildings,  infrastructure,  technology  and  major  equipment  are  the  physical  foundation  for 
providing  services  to  the  residents  of  the  Town  of  EAST  HAMPTON,  a  multi‐ year  Capital  Improvement 
Program  (CIP)  is prepared  and  reviewed  annually.  The  purpose of  the  CIP  is  to  budget  for  the  acquisition, 
replacement or renovation of major capital/fixed assets. These  items are generally not of a recurring nature and 
not  included  in  the  regular  operating  budget  process.  Careful  planning  during  this  process  is  critical  to  the 
procurement, construction, and maintenance of capital assets  to meet the needs and activities of the Town. The 
General Fund, through the annual operating budget, is the primary funding source for the CIP and therefore plays 
an integral role in the development of the program. Proper planning and funding will mitigate budget fluctuations 
year over year.  

 
A  comprehensive  capital plan will help ensure  the  future  financial discipline  and  funding  stability health  of 
the Town and the continued systematically provide efficient delivery of public services to citizens and businesses. 

 
Capital/Fixed Assets are categorized as follows: 

 
• Land 

• Land Improvements 

• Buildings and Improvements 

• Machinery and Equipment 

• Infrastructure 
 

The following Capital/Fixed Asset items are to be included in the Town’s annual operating budget: 
 

• Fixed assets that cost less than $10,000 

• Fixed assets that are of a recurring nature and acquired each year 
 
 

Definitions 
 

1. The Capital improvement program is defined as a plan for capital expenditures over a multi‐year period to 
meet identified improvements in the infrastructure. 

2. The Capital Budget is the first year of a five year plan for capital expenditures to be incurred over a given 
fiscal year  from  funds appropriated by  the Town Council  through the annual budget process  for projects 
scheduled in the same year.  

3. Capital Equipment is defined as any item that has an expected life of five (5) years or more and a purchase 
price in excess of $1,000. Items costing less than $1,000 and lasting less than five (5) years are to be 
purchased from material and supply accounts. The purchase price includes any costs of acquisition or 
transportation of the item or other costs associated with the installation or placing it into service. The 
expected life for a piece of equipment is that period of time for which it will be useful in carrying out 
operations without major repair to its physical condition. Generally, capital equipment includes, but is not 
limited to, furniture and fixtures, machinery and motor vehicles.   

4. Capital  Projects  are  the  improvements  that  make  up  the  capital  budget.  Each  project  has  a  specific 
purpose, justification and cost. Projects propose physical improvements in different elements of the Town's 
infrastructure.  Improvements  include but are not  limited  to:  construction,  reconstruction,  rehabilitation, 
modification,  renovation,  expansion,  replacement,  extension  of  streets,  bridges,  buildings,  sidewalks, 
playgrounds,  lights  and  acquisition  of  land,  buildings  with  associated  relocation,  demolition  and 
improvements such as landscaping, fencing and paving. 

5.  
 
 

jjylkka
Draft



2 | P a g e  
9/18/2013 2:07:43 PM 
10/17/2013 11:14:21 AM 

 
 
 
 
 

Criteria 
The  following  Capital/Fixed  Asset  items  are  to  be  included  for   consideration   in  the  Town’s  Capital 
Improvement Program (CIP): 

 
• The acquisition of and improvements to assets that cost $10,000 or more and, 

• The Capital/Fixed Assets, or improvements, that have an anticipated life expectancy of five years or more. 
Most non‐recurring major expenditures are the result of the Town’s acquisition of capital items   that  form 
the  physical  foundation  for  municipal  services  such  as  land,  buildings,  infrastructure  improvements, 
machinery  and  equipment. However,  there  can  be  major expenditures  for non‐capital  items  that can 
be anticipated on a recurring and periodic basis and require significant funding.  In addition to the above 
items,  the  following  proposed  expenditures may  be  considered  in  the  CIP,  although  they  may  not 
constitute capital/fixed assets with useful lives of five years or more. 

• Property revaluation required by the Connecticut General Statutes 

• Technology programs and systems 

• Sinking fund contributions for debt 

• Sinking fund contributions for repairs to major fixed assets 
 

These  items  and  other  similar  items  that  may  require  significant  funding  of  $10,000  or  more,  and  are  not 
anticipated to be acquired each year, may be appropriate to be included in the CIP process. 

 
The  annual  road  paving  program  can  be  anticipated  on  a  recurring  basis;  however,  it  requires  funding  of 
significantly more than $10,000 and should be included in the CIP process. 

 
This  CIP  provides  for  a  five‐year  plan  of  acquisition,  renovation,  replacement  and  construction  of  the  items 
included in the capital budgetCIP and includes a planning, budgetary and financing process. 
 
Assets in excess of $10,000 not precluded from acquisition in the general fund or other special revenue fund. 

 
 

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
Section 1. The Town Council shall establish and appoint a committee to be known as tThe Capital Improvement 
Planning Committee shall be , composed of one member of the Town Council, one member of the Board of Finance 
Committee, and one member of the Board of Education. Committee assignments shall be determined by the board 
chair. The Town Finance Director, and Town Manager and Superintendent of Schools shall be ex‐officio Committee 
staff members without the right to vote.  
 
ROLES & RESPONSIBILITIES 
Section 2. The Committee shall study proposed capital projects and improvements involving major non‐recurring 
tangible assets and projects which: 1) are purchased or undertaken at intervals of not less than five years; 2) have a 
useful life of at least five years; and 3) cost over $10,000. All officers, boards and committees, including the Board of 
Education, shall, by December 1st of each year, give to the Town Manager who shall forward to the Committee 
information concerning all anticipated projects requiring action during the ensuing five years. The Committee shall 
consider the relative need, impact, timing and cost of these expenditures and the effect each will have on the 
financial position of the town. No appropriation shall be voted for a capital improvement requested by a department, 
board or commission unless the proposed capital improvement is considered by the Committee.  



3 | P a g e  
9/18/2013 2:07:43 PM 
10/17/2013 11:14:21 AM 

 
Section 3. The Committee shall prepare an annual report recommending a Capital Improvement Budget for the next 
fiscal year, and a Capital Improvement Program including recommended capital improvements for the following four 
fiscal years. The report shall be submitted to the Board of Finance for its consideration and approval 
recommendation. The Board of Finance shall submit its approved recommended Capital Budget to the Town Council 
for approval (see Exhibit A).  
 
Section 4. Such Capital Improvement Program, after its adoption, shall permit the expenditure on projects included 
therein of sums from departmental budgets for surveys, architectural or engineering advice, options or appraisals; but 
no such expenditure shall be incurred on projects which have not been so approved by the 
town through the appropriation of funds in the current year or in prior years, or for preliminary planning for projects 
to be undertaken more than five years in the future.  
 
Section 5. The Committee's report and the Town Council’s recommended Capital Budget shall be published and made 
available in a manner consistent with the distribution of the annual Town budget report. The Committee shall deposit 
its original report with the Town Clerk. 
 
 

 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM TIMING/SCHEDULE 

 

Capital Improvement items are considered on the basis of need and value to the community.  In general, the CIP 
will be prepared, presented and acted upon in accordance with the following schedule: 

 
No later than January 2910  Town Manager shall provide a  five  year planning

document  to the Capital Improvement Committee 
summarizing department proposals for capital 
improvements, a recommendation of items to be 
included in the CIP, project priorities  for the following 
fiscal year and proposed method/sources of funding 
for all recommended projects. 

 

On or about February 1  The Capital Committee shall receive, review and 
recommend the 5 year CIP. The plan will then be 
forwarded recommend preliminary capital 
improvement priorities to the Board of Finance 

On or about March 1st February 15  Board of Finance shall recommend CIP to Town Council

No later than March 27  Town Council adopts the CIPcapital program for the
following fiscal year 

Quarterly CIP meetings  The Capital Improvement Planning Committee shall 
meet at least quarterly to review and dicuss current and 
proposed capital projects. 

 

The Town Manager will provide the Town Council periodic CIP status reports throughout the year and present 
detailed project status reports or design plans on an as needed basis in accordance with the applicable 
project schedule. 

 
 
 

IDENTIFICATION OF NEEDS 
 

Capital  Improvement  items  are  considered  on  the  basis  of  need  and  value  to  the  community. Annually,  each 



4 | P a g e  
9/18/2013 2:07:43 PM 
10/17/2013 11:14:21 AM 

department,  board  or  agency  shall  submit  a  proposed  five  year  Capital  Improvement Program  (CIP)  to  the 
Town Manager  in accordance with the CIP schedule.  Requested  items shall  include acquisition of  capital  assets, 
new  construction,  major  renovations  and  improvements  to  municipal  facilities,  purchase  of  machinery  and 
equipment  and  other  items  that  satisfy  the  CIP  criteria. Capital improvement proposals received outside of the 
formal  CIP  process  from  departments,  citizens,  agencies  or  organizations  shall  be  forwarded  to  the  Town 
Manager  for  review  and  recommendation  to  the  Capital   Improvement   Planning   Committee,  Board   of  
Education,  Board  of  Finance  and  Town Council as applicable. 

 
Items that are to be included in the Capital Improvement Program include the following with an estimated cost of 
$10,000 or more and have a useful life of not less than five years: 

 
• Purchase of Land and Development Rights 

• Construction of New Buildings 

• Land and Building Improvements and Renovations 

• Machinery and Equipment 

• Infrastructure Improvements (streets, sewers, sidewalks, etc.) 

• Vehicles and Construction equipment 

• Feasibility Analysis/Design/Cost estimates and other professional services relative to anticipated major 
projects 

• In addition  to the above  items,  the CIP may  include certain  recurring expenditures/projects  that due to 
their  nature  and  anticipated  cost  are  best  appropriated  through  the  CIP  (e.g.  revaluation  or  major 
software acquisition) 

 
 
 

All Capital Projects under consideration must be submitted on forms provided by the Finance Department and include 
accompanied by a description including the following detail and descriptive information:  
1) PROJECT TITLE: Enter the title best describing the project. Be concise, but as descriptive as possible.  

2) SUBMITTED BY: Enter the Department, and division, if applicable.  

3) CONTACT PERSON: Enter the name and telephone number of the person who can best answer detailed questions 
about this project.  

4) PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Give a full, detailed description of the project. The description must contain enough 
information to allow for a detailed project cost estimate. If the project is construction of a building, specify the 
following: size; use; type of building; utility type; etc. If it is a street project, specify the following: length; width; 
whether it is new construction, reconstruction or resurfacing; whether it involves new signals, sewers, and/or 
sidewalks; etc. Any project with insufficient information to develop a cost estimate will not be considered.  

5) PROJECT JUSTIFICATION: Support the need for this project. Some of the questions you might want to consider 
followbelow:  

 Does the project meet established standards and/or codes? 

 Does the project address a Town Council policy initiative or Board of Education goal?  

 Does it eliminate or mitigate a health, fire or safety concernhazard?  

 Does it serve a segment of the community not currently served?  

 Does it foster private investment? How much?  

 Does it create jobs? How many? What type?  

 Does it support economic development (i.e. tourism)? 

 Does the project require additional staffing or operational increases? 

 Does the project create any revenue? 

 Does it meet or address a federal or state mandate? 

 What will happen if the Town does not undertake this project?  

 Use the above and the Capital Allocation Checklist as a guide in submitting justifications.  

6) PROJECT LOCATION AND SERVICE AREA: Give a brief description of the community impact the project will have as 
well as the area it will serve.  



5 | P a g e  
9/18/2013 2:07:43 PM 
10/17/2013 11:14:21 AM 

7) SIGNATURE: The Department Director must sign the bottom of the form and date it. The signature indicates that 
the director approves of the submission of the project and agrees with the information provided.  
 
 

Estimated Costs 
 

Costs shall be estimated for all  items requested as part of  the five‐year Capital  Improvement Program. Costs for 
items  requested  in  years  two  through  five  shall  anticipate  an  escalation  rate  to  be  determined  by  the  Town 
Manager and Finance Director at the beginning of the CIP process. 

 
The  steps  for major  capitalconstruction projects  in the CIP,  those estimated  to exceed $250,000, mayshall be 
recommended required by the Town Manager and will generally include the following: 

A. Evaluation/feasibility phase, as necessary 
B. Preliminary design and cost estimating phase 
C. Final Design and construction 

 
Subject to the specifics of the project, funding for steps A and B may be combined in the initial request. Cost 
estimates should include preliminary design fees, final design fees, architectural fees, construction management 
fees, construction costs, acquisition costs, contingency, escalation, legal and financing fees, including short  term 
interest, and any other  costs applicable  to  the project.   The scope and estimated costs of  in kind  services  shall 
be  identified and presented along with  the  initial  cost estimates  for  the project. 

 
 
 

Funding 
 

The  Town  Council,  as  part  of  the  annual  operating  and  capital  budget  process,  will  review  the  c a p i t a l  
e q u i p m e n t  a n d   capital projects in the CIP as recommended by the Board of FinanceTown Manager. The Town 
Manager and Finance Director will develop  a  recommended financing plan, with options, based on total project 
costs,  cash  flow,  projected method(s)  of  financing  the projects, Capital Reserve  fund projections, mill  rate  and 
debt  service  impact  on  future  operating  budgets.  The  Town  Council  shall  review  these  projections  when 
developing  project  priorities  and  the  recommended  capital  program  for  the  following  year.  The  goal  is  to 
effectively  balance  the  total  of  the annual Capital Reserve Transfer and Debt Service requirements  to minimize 
fluctuations in the mill rate in accordance with established guidelines set forth in this document. 

 
An  annual  financing  plan  for  the  multi‐year  capital  improvement  plan  is  critical  to  the  CIP  process. Factors 
to be considered shall include: 

 
• Anticipated revenue and expenditure trends and the relationship to multi‐year financial plans 

• Cash flow projections of the amount and timing of the capital improvement projects 

• Compliance with all established financial policies 

• Legal constraints imposed by Town charter or State statute 

• Evaluation of various funding alternatives 

• Reliability and stability of identified funding sources 

• Evaluation of the affordability of the financing strategy, including debt ratios, future budgets and mill 
rate. 

 
The Capital Improvement Program shall generally be funded as follows: 

 
A. Capital Reserve Fund –  The Town will use the Capital Reserve Fund as the primary funding source for capital 

projects to be funded on a pay as you go basis. The Capital Reserve Fund is primarily funded through an annual 
appropriation from the General Fund.    

 



6 | P a g e  
9/18/2013 2:07:43 PM 
10/17/2013 11:14:21 AM 

Based  on  factors  referenced  herein  the  Town  Council  shall  consider  as  a  general  guideline  a 
minimum annual appropriation and  transfer  to  the Capital Reserve Fund  in  an amount equivalent  to  three 
percent (3%) of the current adopted operating budget rounded to the next highest $5,000. 

 
Annually  the  Board  of  Finance  will  review  the  General  Fund  unassigned  fund  balance,  Capital Reserve 
unassigned fund balance and other funding requirements and may recommend a transfer of additional  funds 
to  the  Capital  Reserve  Fund.  The  goal  of  the  Town  is  to  maintain  an  unassigned balance  in  the Capital 
Reserve Fund of an amount equivalent  to $1,000,000, except as needed  to meet emergencies.  The reserve 
policy will be reviewed annually and adjusted accordingly as part of the CIP process. Factors to be considered 
include  evaluation  of  the  projects  in  the  multi‐  year  plan,  the  method  of  financing  and  their  effect  on 
projected mill rates. 
 

B. Capital Initiatives Fund – This fund is primarily used to account for the construction and acquisition of major 
capital assets. Bond proceeds are the major funding source for projects accounted for in the fund.  

 
C. Donations/Grants/Loans  – Anticipated  contributions  from  various  organizations  or  groups  towards certain 

Capital Improvement projects, grants and loans will be used in financing the CIP to determine final estimated 
net cost to the Town. 

D. General Obligation Bonds – Projects that are anticipated to have a significant expenditure of funds should be 
considered  for  referendum  and  funded  through  the  issuance  of  general  obligation  bonds  that  shall  be 
authorized and issued in accordance with Connecticut statutes and the Town of East Hampton Charter. 
Projects funded through the issuance of debt must be approved by the Board of Finance, Town Council and 
Town Meeting. The Town Council may elect  to have a project voted on at  referendum  in  lieu of a Town 
Meeting. 

 

 
 
 

AMENDING THE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM  
From time to time during the year changes must be made in the Capital Improvement Program (CIP). These changes 
are made through a CIP Amendment request. A CIP Amendment is required under the following conditions:  

 Financing a project not previously considered. This may result from emergencies that may occur during the 
year, or a change as needed.  

 Increasing the funded amount of an existing project. These may arise from unanticipated inflation, change in 
the original project description or bids which come in higher than the original cost estimate.  

 
A CIP Amendment is processed as follows:  
1)   The department responsible for the project makes an initial determination that additional funds are required for 

a specific purpose.  

2)   A written request by the Department Head is submitted to the Town Manager. The request will include: A) Name 
of Project; B) Additional funds requested; C) Total current cost of the project; and D) Justification of request ;E) 
Total estimated budget.  

3)   For new projects the Town Manager makes a recommendation to the Capital Finance Committee which approves 
or disapproves the request. Amendments to currently approved projects  can be approved by the Town Manager.  

 

Projects not previously considered 
4)   If the request is approved, the Town Manager will prepare a report and resolution for approval from the Board 

of Finance and Town Council. The report will be placed on the earliest possible agenda of the Board of Finance 
and Town Council.  

5)   Upon approval of the Board of Finance and Town Council, a project will be established by the Finance 
department.  



7 | P a g e  
9/18/2013 2:07:43 PM 
10/17/2013 11:14:21 AM 

6)   The Department proceeds with the project after steps 1‐3 have been performed for existing projects and steps 1‐
5 for new projects. They will be notified by the Town Manager’s Office.  

 

Revisions to Approved CIP Projects: 
Periodically there will be changes made to the approved CIP Projects that will require extra funding. This could arise 
from unanticipated inflation, change from the original project description or bids that may push up the original cost 
estimate. These additional funding requests will be handled as follows: 
 
1‐ The Department or authorized entity responsible for the Project makes an initial determination that additional 
funds are required for a specific purpose. 
2‐ The Department Head submits a written request for additional funding to the Town Manager. 
This request will include the original Finance Department CIP request form and will include detailed cost differences 
in the original Project and the revised Project. 
3‐ This additional funding can be approved by the Town Manager providing the additional costs do not exceed the 
greater of $10,000 or 10% of the original Project cost. 
4‐ Should the Project Cost increase be more than $10,000 or 10% of the original Project cost then the Project must go 
back to the CIP Committee for their review and approval. 
 
 

Funding New and Emergency CIP Projects: 
Periodically there will be projects that arise suddenly or on an emergency basis. These projects will follow the normal 
process as outlined in this policy. 

 
 
ACCOUNTING PROCEDURES  
After all of the projects have been approved by Town Council the Finance Department will begin the process of 
establishing accounts for the approved programs. All appropriations will be established based upon the approved 
project cost and prepared by using the line item criteria established by the cost estimate forms. In addition, the  
 
Finance Department will be responsible for the following:  
 
1) Maintaining grant agreements;  

2) Maintaining audit records;  

3) Receiving and recording revenues;  

4) Distributing payments;  

5) Reconciling the general ledger;  

6) Reconciling bank statements and investments; and  

7) Monitoring department performance.  
 
The Department Director or Project Manager will be responsible for the following:  
 
1) Creating monthly project status reports;  

2) Creating and maintaining project timetables;  

3) Explaining project changes and/or cost overruns;  

4) Providing updates to the Town Council;  

5) Presenting projects to committee and the Town Council;  

6) Completing data detail for the Finance Department; and  

7) Estimating costs and/or staffing requirements.  
 
 



Citizens Employees Boards & Commissions

Capital Improvement Planning Committee

Board of Finance

Town Council

Town Manager

Capital Improvement Program

Exhibit A

Town Manager shall provide a five year
planning document to the Capital 
Improvement Committee summarizing
department proposals for capital improvements,
a recommendation of items to be included in
the CIP, project priorities for the following
fiscal year and proposed method/sources of
funding for all recommended projects.

The Committee shall study proposed capital projects and 
improvements involving major non-recurring tangible assets and 
projects. All officers, boards and committees, including the Board 
of Education, shall, by of each year, give to the Committee 
information concerning all anticipated projects requiring action 
during the ensuing five years. The Committee shall consider the 
relative need, impact, timing and cost of these expenditures and 
the effect each will have on the financial position of the town. No 
appropriation shall be voted for a capital improvement 
requested by a department, board or commission unless the 

proposed capital improvement is considered by the Committee.

The Board of Finance shall recommend a 
Capital Improvement Program to the Town 

Council. 

Town Council adopts the Capital Improvement Program 

Citizens can request a 
capital project be 

considered through a 
member of a board or 

commission..

The board or commission 
member presents proposed 
projects to the Town 
Manager for consideration.


	10-21-2013 Agenda
	5a.1 Town of East Hampton - Capital Reserve Fund Historical Society Water System 13-14
	5a.2Chatham Historical Society
	8a. Revenue 13-14
	8b. Expenditures 13-14
	9b. East Hampton CIP Policy Draft 10-17-13
	CIP Exhibit A Visio-Capital Requests Drawing1



